
Oak Bluffs Planning Board
Meeting Minutes

May 26, 2016 at 5:00 p.m. in the Oak Bluffs Lower Level meeting room

Members in attendance: Brian Packish (Chairman), Erik Albert, Ewell Hopkins

Members absent: Robert Fehl (note: Kris Chvatal resigned and no appointment had yet been 
made)

Staff in attendance: MacGregor Anderson (Clerical Assistant)

Chairman Brian Packish called the meeting to order at 5:05 p.m.

Minutes review and approval 2/11/16, 5/12/16

Chairman Packish confirmed the Board members had reviewed the minutes prior to the 

meeting. Member Hopkins made a motion to accept the minutes.  Member Albert seconded.

The Board voted 3-0 to approve the minutes.

Mark Barbadoro requesting Planning Board representation nomination for Cottage City 

Historic District Committee 

CCHDC chair Mr. Barbadoro requested a Planning Board member join the committee.  Member 

Hopkins said he was familiar with their work and had attended meetings.  The Board selected 

Member Hopkins to represent the Planning Board on the CCHDC.

Master Plan next steps including discussion of coordinating data and materials gathering with 

the Martha’s Vineyard Commission

Member Hopkins had spoken with John Ford at Horsley Witten to get free guidance on best 

practices and interest gathering.  He expected to have an outline that will advance the process 

in the next two weeks..

Chairman Packish said Horsley Witten had done work with the Town on Streetscape and parks, 

and since the Board was not in a position to write a check, he wanted to take any free advice he

could.  He said had forwarded Terry Appenzeller’s e-mail to the consultants for review.  Her e-

mail outlined a proposed process for the master plan.  Chairman Packish said the consultants 

strongly discouraged a committee approach.  There would be certain pieces they could do 

themselves, and despite people saying much of the work was already done, referencing the 

Island Plan or Open Space Plan.   While it may seem like 95% of the information has been 

gathered it represents about 5% of the actual work.  There were things that could be done 

without funding like reaching out to the various players like the MVC, ConCom and others to 



begin gathering these documents and putting them in one location on the Town website.  He 

noted the huge volume of pages and the challenge of reconciling all the information.  

Adam Turner said he and Bill Veno and Christine Flynn had already begun discussing what 

documents they could get including maps.  He also said the MVC could help with scanning.  Mr. 

Anderson said Christine Flynn was working on updating the 2014 dated list of documents the 

MVC had provided the planning board for this process.  Ms. Flynn said she expected to be done 

with that in a day.  Chairman Packish asked that they work with Mr. Anderson to get these 

documents on the website.

Ms. Barmakian confirmed that nobody had been hired and that these were just phone calls 

discussing next steps.  Member Hopkins emphasized that they were just looking for best 

practices and had not hired anybody.

Peter Goodale asked if there was specific information that should be collected for his private 

surveys.  Chairman Packish suggested he speak with Member Fehl as he had just completed the 

Town Hall survey.

Bill Veno said CPTC training recommended steering committees in their training on master 

plans.  He said another workshop would be held in September at the MVC.  

Chairman Packish said the hardest part was creating a roadmap.  He said Horsley Witten didn’t 

have a document that outlined the path, so they decided to produce one.  He said the 

consultant’s view was a steering committee ended up being just a couple people doing the 

work and you got a lot less community buy-in.  He felt it would have to be a hybrid of the two 

and time would determine how that balance developed.  Member Hopkins confirmed this was 

John Ford’s input.

Moira McGroarty asked if we had a master plan now.  Member Hopkins said not to get caught 

up in terms.  He said the process would be engaging the community.  One of the outcomes 

would be a document.  But the process of coming together and prioritizing the direction of the 

town was the goal.  Chairman Packish said the current document was 18 years old.  Mr. 

Barbadoro said he thought they had to be updated every ten years.  Member Hopkins said 

there were no penalties, but he and Member Albert pointed out that a recent master plan

made more funding available.

Kim Burke asked what the next step was.  Chairman Packish said gathering documents and 

working with people who were eager to do something when and where they could.  The goal 



was to demonstrate due diligence in order to ask for funding in April.  Ms. Burke suggested 

having it on the capital planning budget.  Member Packish said Member Fehl would be happy to

talk about it as he was the representative for that committee.

Ms. Barmakian asked about block grants for master planning and an article they had all read 

earlier in the year.  Mr. Anderson said he would re-forward the e-mail to her.

Town Hall next steps

Chairman Packish said he had hoped to have Member Fehl present as he had done the survey 

work.  He said the survey was the first of many tools moving forward and the question was 

what are the next steps?  He said one clear need was to give the people a bare minimum 

number for getting the current building into compliance.  He felt the survey showed when 

people said do what is most economical that this was important data.

Member Hopkins said he was concerned about the delineation of authority in the process, 

where planning ended, and he wanted to define the scope and parameters of the project so it 

could be handed off to the building committee or whomever.  It would then eventually come 

back for a site plan review.  Member Hopkins asked that all the options be defined.  He was not 

comfortable that he knew where the responsibility ended yet.  Member Albert agreed.

Ms. Barmakian said that interpreting the responsibility should be done with the Selectmen 

working together.  Member Hopkins agreed the process should be inclusive throughout.  

Chairman Packish agreed.

Amy Billings asked if the discussion was still about the same plan or was the Board starting 

fresh?  She did not support the design including the windowless office for the Building 

Inspector.  Chairman Packish said they would review the numbers, and that he was not in favor 

of writing more checks to anyone already involved in the project.  He reiterated that he wanted 

a review of the other buildings and their needs.  He said he would go on record saying he didn’t 

think the Board was even close to being done with the discussion, and that building committees

were there to build a building, and they weren’t there yet.  He had hoped to get more in depth 

but with Member Fehl out he asked Mr. Anderson to put it on the next agenda.

Walter Vail felt the next best step was for the Selectmen and Planning Board to review the 

results of the survey and then determine next steps.  He said he disagreed about the building 

committee, that they were tasked by the Selectmen to investigate sites and options.  He 

suggested looking at the feasibility study that had already covered these points like repair, 

rebuild, etc.  He reiterated that the Town had approved a new town hall and the vote was only 



over the debt exclusion.  He said the Planning Board’s job was a site plan review and that they 

needed to be sure all the work done several years ago was presented to the Town.  He wanted 

it brought to a vote in November or April at the latest.  He did not want to start all over with a 

new feasibility study, that it would be expensive.

Member Hopkins said he was encouraged as the discussion showed the two ends of the 

spectrum and they were better placed to come together and decide responsibilities.

Renee Balter said that if the master plan had been updated then important issues like the town 

hall, the fire station, and industrial zoning would have been discussed already.  She felt taking 

the projects piecemeal led to confusion and going in different directions.  She disagreed that 

there was a need to hire a big consultant.  She said she worked on the 1998 plan, and it was 

common sense.  She said Adam Turner had saved all the documents from that and they were 

like a roadmap.  You start with sending a survey to everyone in town, not just leave a box at the 

library or Town Hall.  She felt that mailings were the best place to spend money.  She then said 

Terry Appenzellar was brilliant and could head up one of these consultant companies like 

Horsely and Witten, that she was a valuable asset willing to help and work with the MVC.  She 

said a consultant might be needed, but other towns didn’t need them.

Moira McGroarty said she did not like the duplication of meeting rooms in various town 

buildings and was against the large atrium in the proposed new town hall.  She felt a basic 

functional town hall was more desirable.

Ms. Barmakian said she felt the building inspector needed to do the assessments of other town 

buildings, so they could determine how bad Town Hall was relative to other buildings.  She 

wondered about the High School and Elementary School and numbers not yet in capital 

planning.  She did not want to decide Town Hall in a vacuum.  Ms. Billings agreed with this.

Member Hopkins said that got to the point of “how big is the scope of this?”  Chairman Packish 

said he was one vote but had felt all along that this should be comprehensive.  He said 

taxpayers were concerned about endless building.  What sense of urgency would be next?

Mr. Barbadoro said he had reviewed accessibility and safety but not wear and tear.  He had 

asked for assistance from the County with ADA which he would receive in September.  

Chairman Packish acknowledged it was a staffing shortage in the building department which 

would hopefully be rectified soon.  He said the original report shined a light on this building and 

took it off the other buildings.  He wanted that information and he wanted to fill in some gaps 

in the reports Mr. Vail referenced.  He said they would take this up again at the next meeting.



Streetscape update following Waterfield Design Group’s presentation of May 19

Chairman Packish said they had the first meeting with the Waterfield group with good 

representation from the committee.  They had completed the entire topographic survey of 

downtown and overlaid phase one.  He said it went well with 95% of ideas fitting.  While some 

of the ideas in phase one were still controversial they were possible.  Craig from Waterfield was 

encouraging about finding funding sources, especially with packaging transportation as a port 

town, which could lead to federal funding.  

Amy Billings asked if wayfinding was covered in more detail after she had left.  She felt it was 

something that could be addressed soon.  Chairman Packish said it was discussed modestly, and

change of materials was a focus of the discussion.  He thought the wayfinding subcommittee 

would cover it, and he agreed it was low hanging fruit.  Adam Turner agreed with Ms. Billings, 

and Chairman Packish said Mr. Whritenour felt it was a priority.

Chairman Packish asked Mr. Anderson to make the CAD plans and other documents available 

on the website.  Ms. Billings asked that a physical copy be available at the library.  Chairman 

Packish asked Mr. Turner to reduce the long panels to a smaller scale, down from 24 feet, and 

Mr. Anderson to ask the library for permission to hang them.

All Island Planning Board’s request for an agenda item for June 20 meeting

Member Hopkins asked that an update on S-2144, zoning reform, but Edgartown already 

proposed it.  Bill Veno said he would e-mail an S-2144 update link and presentation to the 

Board.  It was decided to place it on the next agenda.

Chairman Packish then asked Mr. Anderson to read a letter of support from Mr. Whritenour 

regarding Planning Board’s Town Hall work.

Fire Station landscaping discussion

Chairman Packish read an e-mail in which he had offered to review the project for site plan 

review compliance.  The response from architect John Keenan showed non-compliance with the

site plan, and Mr. Keenan declined a walk through.  Chairman Packish asked the Board for their 

input on responding.

Member Hopkins said he agreed they were out of compliance and while he didn’t know 

repercussions he felt the Board would have to modify the criteria or make them be compliant.  

He said they could not sign off on something that was not compliant.  He said he was still very 

concerned about the property behind the station with respect to screening, generator noise 



and bay lighting.  He said the owner was open to talking.  He said the generator was out of scale

and that there was not enough room to plant the trees.

Chairman Packish noted the bike rack still hadn’t arrived.  He said he felt the site plan review 

was as generous and lenient as it could be, with the foundation hole dug before anybody 

respected the authority of the Board.  He said the process could not have been more 

disrespected from the point where they finally got a site plan review to the point where the 

suggestions were not implemented to now where they said they were done, have a nice day,

we’re not walking the site with you.

Chairman Packish said he asked Mr. Whritenour what next, and he was told to tell them to 

come into compliance.  He had also spoken with the Rogers who told him that the generator 

noise was unbearable.  He said he spoke with Mr. Vail, who had changed timing of the running 

of the generator, somewhat mitigating the issue, but the Rogers feared the summer months 

and open windows.

Member Hopkins suggested writing a letter to John Keenan asking for a walk through of the 

site.  He didn’t want to ask for anything unreasonable but also didn’t want to put his name next 

to anything that was not compliant.  He felt the site plan would have to be modified as the 

generator could never be screened.

Member Hopkins said he had learned a lot from this process and would be very wary of scale in 

the future.  Chairman Packish said he was unwilling to ever rush anything along in good faith 

again.  He asked Mr. Vail who should be cc’d on the letter.

Mr. Vail said he should be included along with Joe Sullivan as OPM.

Ms. Billings said she was not satisfied with the section on County and Wing not being on the 

landscape plan and felt the landscaping there was very bad.  She said Chief Rose planned to talk 

with Mark Crossland but if it was not in the budget how would they pay for it?   She was also 

unhappy donated stone walls had been torn out and not fixed.  Member Hopkins said the 

Board’s concern had been neighbors, site lines and safety and it would be out of the Board’s 

jurisdiction to review that portion of the property now.

Ms. Billings asked when the landscaping plans changed.  Chairman Packish said they came in 

with one revision which the Board approved.  They then tried several informal changes and a 

few were allowed.  Chairman Packish then shared his frustration with the museum and felt 



disrespected as a donor and family member of fire fighters.  He said they could not impact that 

either.

The Board decided to have Chairman Packish write the letter in coordination with Mr. 

Anderson.  Mr. Anderson asked if the zoning enforcement officer should be included in the 

requested site walk.  Chairman Packish said Mr. Barbadoro should be included, that he had 

attended the last site walk but waited at the car and said “you tell me what I need to do and I 

am good with it.”

Board member updates

Member Hopkins wanted it on the record that he was late to his daughter’s honors night at the 

high school where she was receiving an award.

Mr. Turner said his meetings often coincided with the Planning Board’s but that he wanted to 

come in and update the Board once a month.  He gave a brief update of the MVC calendar and 

said the DRI revisions should be posted June 2nd.  There would be a hearing a few weeks after 

that.  He said next time they took on the checklist they should start fresh as the document was 

40 years old and amending it was extremely problematic.  Chairman Packish thanked Mr. 

Turner for the hard work on the checklist saying he thought real improvements had been made.

Ms. Billings asked how a group could come back to the MVC asking for revisions when they 
were not even compliant with the original approval.  She gave the bowling alley as an example.  
Mr. Turner said there were two sections right at the top and if an applicant weren’t compliant 
the Board won’t let them move forward.  He said in the case of the bowling alley there had 
been testimony on both sides that affordable housing and a regulator were out of compliance.  
He said his goal was to get all the public input possible even if it took four hour meetings.  
Member Hopkins noted the time the school committee had spent on the AstroTurf, saying the 
public process wasn’t efficient but it was important.  Mr. Turner said that if a public body spent 
that much time reviewing a project, he said the MVC had to ask themselves what their role was.
He said there was a statutory role, but they had to be respectful of others.

Chairman Packish said he had a request for the turf to be referred to the MVC.  He said he had 
Mr. Anderson forward it to the building inspector as the Board had no formal role in it.

Mr. Turner said Lagoon Ridge was going to be tricky because of the smaller engineered lots in 
exchange for open space.  Member Hopkins asked if they were asking for a bond.  He said staff 
had asked for a bond.  He said the system took them from the limit of 13 to 10 with a one year 
guarantee.  What if it doesn’t work?

Chairman Packish said there would be a full discussion another time and this was as far in as 
they should go.



Chairman Packish said there had been one applicant for the vacant Board seat and he had 
heard from two other candidates.  He said he had updated the Selecmen at their last meeting 
and he said Mr. Santoro didn’t attend because he didn’t want to have a quorum.

Amy Billings said the water department had put a hold on town watering because of well siting 
issues.  She said after some back and forth they had agreed to allow Niantic Park watering on a 
fairly regular basis to establish it.  Mark Crossland would not be installing the donated irrigation 
system, although he would next summer, but he would help with hoses and watering.  Member 
Hopkins noted individuals could put in a new system with no conservation whatsoever.  
Chairman Packish said the letter from the Planning Board saying they couldn’t have the well 
they wanted resulted in them saying you can’t have your park.  He planned to talk to the Town 
Administrator and asked Mr. Anderson that a water district conservation discussion go on the 
next agenda.  Chairman Packish said that for a town to lose out on free irrigation in a park 
because of grandstanding was disappointing.

The meeting was adjourned at 7:00 pm

Documents used in this meeting:

Sign In Sheet

Agenda

MVC General Points Regarding Master Plans

MVC Town of Oak Bluffs Draft List of Past Planning Documents

E-mail from Robert Whritenour of May 26, 2016 titled Town Hall Project

Proposed AIPB Agenda items for June 20 meeting in West Tisbury

E-mail from Brian Packish to Keenan and Keenan of May 20, 2016 titeld OB Fire/EMS 
Landscaping Review


